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1. The following provides answers submitted in reference to the Pre-Proposal questions with a due date of 
December 12, 2016, 3:00 PM, Philadelphia time.  The answers to these questions are provided for 
clarification purposes only and do not change the requirements in the solicitation. 


1. Please confirm that Corsica is a Zone 1 location. 
DLA Troop Support Response: Land Based customers in Corsica are part of Zone 1 (see chart in 


section XIII “Customers” of the Solicitation). 
 
2. Please confirm that Iceland is a Zone 1 location.  


DLA Troop Support Response: Land Based customers in Iceland are part of in Zone 1 (see chart in 
section XIII “Customers” of the Solicitation). 


 
3. Should Iceland also be included in Zone 4? 


DLA Troop Support Response: Navy Ships customers in Iceland are included in Zone 4.  As noted 
in the solicitation; The countries listed in Zone 4 represent the current Ports of Call for NAVEUR/NAVAF.  
During the life of the contract, Ports of Call maybe added to Zone 4 to service any country list in Zones 1, 
2 and 3, at no additional cost to the Government. 
 
4. Please confirm that Syria is a Zone 2 location. 
 DLA Troop Support Response: Land Based customers in Syria are part of Zone 2 (see chart in 
section XIII “Customers” of the Solicitation.). 
 
5. Will this solicitation include support for the Central Asian countries: Kazakhstan, Kyrgyzstan, Uzbekistan, 
Turkmenistan and Tajikistan? 


DLA Troop Support Response: This solicitation does not include support for the above-referenced 
Central Asian States (see chart in section XIII “Customers” of the Solicitation). 
 
6. Is DLA able to provide an update on the status of the national beef contract?  In the event an award is 
made prior to the due date of this solicitation, will we be required to submit quotes from the awarded beef 
vendors? 


DLA Troop Support Response: No, DLA cannot provide an update on the status of the national beef 
contract.  Offerors on this acquisition will be advised of any revised submission requirements based on the 
award of a national contract via amendment to this solicitation. 


 
7. In the solicitation, the item availability section and the WMS section seem to conflict concerning the Days 
of Stock requirement for items that have more than a 180-day shelf life.  Does the 90 Days of Stock 
requirement apply to all Zones or only Zone 4, with items that have more than 180-day shelf life? 
 DLA Troop Support Response: The 90 Days of Stock requirement applies to Zone 4 only and is 
required for items with 181 days of shelf life or more (see Section IV, K “Item Availability”, subsection 3 
and Section VII, A “Warehouse Management”, subsection 3). 
 
8. Is there any intent from DLA to award Zone 3 and/or 4 to a Prime Vendor that does not win Zone 1 or 
2? 


DLA Troop Support Response: DLA intends to make one award per zone based on the best value 
for each zone. 
 
9. In the event multiple zones are awarded to the same Prime Vendor, would the Prime Vendor be required 
to submit all reports separately to DLA for each zone? 


DLA Troop Support Response: The Prime Vendor will be required to submit separate reports per 
zone. 


 
10. Will the Government be providing DTS services into West Africa? 


DLA Troop Support Response: Yes, the Government intends to provide DTS service from CONUS to 
West Africa. 


 
11. Will offerors be able to submit additional questions, after we receive our initial feedback from DLA? 


DLA Troop Support Response: Questions must have been submitted no later than December 12, 
2016 (see Amendment 0001). 
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12. Zone 1: The Market basket asks to quote Wonder bread which a specific brand. Since there is a limited 
source for Wonder bread in Europe, must it be Wonder bread? Can other local bread, similar to Wonder 
bread be offered?  


DLA Troop Support Response:  While exact matches to the Market Basket are optimal, please see 
the submission requirements for alternate items. 


 
13. PAGE 38 SOW: “Please note that even with these exceptions, it is still the Government’s preference to 
provide domestic items to the maximum extent possible.  Please propose accordingly.” Question: Can we 
purchase/quote CONUS equivalents or better for the current OCONUS purchases? 
 DLA Troop Support Response: No, for OCONUS items an OCONUS quote is required. 
 
14. The EU has stringent regulations with regards to US products as indicated on page 47 of the SOW. The 
costs of these regulations can be significant in terms of value and performance. Are there any agreements 
between the USG and the EU with regards to waiving these requirements e.g. for CVEDs? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  It is the offeror/contractor’s responsibility to be aware of and comply 
with all local Government and EU laws and regulations. 


 
15. Page 45 of SOW mentions DOS. How is DOS defined? It is an average of 12 weeks calculated starting 
when? (90 DOS on hand, 65 DOS on the water, page 48). 30 DOS on order= 185 DOS or 6.2 AMD 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Days of Stock (DOS) is the number of days of inventory on hand at 
each warehouse facility per line item.  In order to determine if the minimum DOS is in inventory, the 
Government will use the previous 12 weeks of demand, see Section K (Item Availability), Subsection 4.  
However, the contractor is ultimately responsible for managing its warehouses and the appropriate 
inventory levels to satisfy the requirements of the solicitation. 


 
16. Page 49 of SOW: “The Subsistence Prime Vendor will be responsible for costs incurred for delays due 
to improper or erroneous documentation,”. What if Government issued customs documents for importation 
of goods are late or incorrect resulting in delays and demerges and other costs. Can the DLA advise who 
will be responsible? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  It is the contractor’s responsibility to ensure that customs 
documentation is correct. The Government will not be liable for any costs or charges resulting from delays. 


 
17. Page 53 and 54 is SOW: “DLA Troop Support Prime Vendors will be permitted to transfer product 
between one another based on SPE300-17-R-0016 Subsistence Prime Vendor Northern Europe, Southern 
Europe/North Africa & Western Africa their own agreements. However, the receiving Prime Vendor must 
catalog the item(s) at the actual unit price as defined in this solicitation which is equal to product price plus 
the receiving Prime Vendor’s distribution price. The receiving Prime Vendor will not be entitled to any 
amount above contract product price. Is DLA aware that movements of non-conform protein products 
between warehouses are not allowed per EU regulation?”  


DLA Troop Support Response:  DLA Troop Support Prime Vendors will not be precluded, by contract, 
from transferring product between one another.  In accordance with Section IX of the Solicitation, however, 
it is the Prime Vendor’s responsibility to be aware of and abide by all international regulations related to 
those transfers, including laws that may prohibit such transfers. 


 
18. Page 74 of SOW states “x. Any other condition not specified above that is determined a valid reason 
by the customer.”  Are customer ordering errors also considered a valid reason? E.g. the customer wanted 
to order 10 (ten) cases of a product but due to a typo ordered 100 (hundred) cases. Does the PV have to 
take back 90 cases? 
 DLA Troop Support Response:  Such determinations will be made on a case by case basis. 
 
19. Page 77 of SOW states: “Case Marking/Labeling – Customers OTHER THAN THE NAVY Shipping cases 
shall be marked or labeled on one end or side panel with the following information: Item Nomenclature or 
Description Global Trade Item Number (GTIN) Date of Pack Product Expiration Date and/or Best If Used By 
Date” Does this mean that there is not requirement for NSN/LSN on labels?  


DLA Troop Support Response: See Amendment 4 for revision. 
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20. Page 80 SOW: “Trucks/aircraft shall also be properly registered with each activity to ensure smooth 
admission to the compound, while fully honoring all local security protection measures of the military 
activities.” Are drivers of all European nationalities allowed to perform deliveries? Are there restrictions?  
 DLA Troop Support Response:  There may be restrictions in place depending on the delivery 
locations.  The contractor is responsible for having knowledge of any such restrictions and also being able 
to make the deliveries in spite of the restrictions. 
 
21. Page 84 of SOW: “This 120-day period will begin after the Prime Vendor receives initial demand”. Is it 
imperative that all customers provide demand including NAVY? What should PV do in case they do not 
receive forecasted demand for a new item? 
 DLA Troop Support Response:  It is anticipated that customers will provide demand.  Issues with 
specific item additions will be addressed as a matter of contract administration. 
 
22. Page 87 of SOW: “C09 C02 Canisters” Why are these reported separately on fill rate report?  


DLA Troop Support Response: Currently, CO2 canisters are not typically inventoried by the PV and 
therefore are not anticipated to count against fill rate. 


 
23. Page 11 of SOW: Zone IV states 86 countries while list on page 79 states 42? 


DLA Troop Support Response: There is no list on Page 11, use the list on page 79 and refer to the 
“Note” below. 


 
24. In the SOW on Page 83, under Point F (ORDER CANCELLATION), it states that cancellations must be 
received by the PV via email from the ordering activity or a delegate or through a STORES receipt (zero) 
no less than 72 hours prior to the RDD. Does this mean that for remote destinations where e.g. more than 
72 hours are needed the customer can still cancel part/entire order, even if the merchandise is loaded on 
the truck and on its way to the final destination? 


DLA Troop Support Response: Section XIV, Subsection F, “Order Cancellation” requires that order 
cancellations from ALL customers must be received no less than 24 hours prior to RDD except for Afloat 
Navy Ships which are given a 72 hour time frame. 


 
25. In the SOW on Page 83, under Point G (HOLIDAYS), it states that a delivery can fall on a holiday or 
during a holiday period. Will the Prime Vendor be entitled to request demurrage, in the event the truck/s 
needs to arrive to the final destination 2-3 days prior the requested RDD, in order to be able to proceed 
with the custom procedures, and meet the requested RDD, even if the national holidays are causing the 
complete shutdown of operations?  


DLA Troop Support Response: DLA will not approve demurrage if a truck needs to arrive early due 
to a holiday. 


 
26. In the SOW on Page 83, under Point H (EMERGENCY ORDERS), it states that “The Prime Vendor will 
provide a maximum of five (5) such “emergency” orders (excluding mobilization actions) per month per 
customer at no additional cost to DLA Troop Support or its customers. Greater than five (5) “emergency” 
orders will be approved at the Contracting Officers discretion and must be entered into STORES.” Please 
define what is an emergency order?  Is there a minimum associated dollar value in order to warrant a 
customer emergency delivery?  Must all emergency orders be approved by the contracting officer? Does 
this mean that each single customer is entitled to request 5 emergency orders per month in addition to 
their weekly deliveries.  Considering that there are hundreds of delivery points, this may result in numerous 
emergency deliveries; historically how many emergency orders per week/month are there?  
 DLA Troop Support Response:  “Emergency orders placed by the customer are those required 
outside of the normal delivery schedules.”  There is no minimum dollar value associated with these orders.  
No, more than 5 per month must be approved by the contracting officer.  As stated in section XIV, 
Subsection H, “Emergency Orders”, the emergency orders are on a per customer basis and are in addition 
to the normally scheduled deliveries.  Historically, emergency deliveries do not occur frequently, however 
five (5) emergency deliveries per month is included to account for emergencies. 
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27. What is the minimum value of an order to warrant a customer delivery? For example a customer located 
in Keflavik Air base, Iceland could order one case of hamburgers.  
 DLA Troop Support Response:  The minimum order value will be $350 per customer delivery 
location for the same Required Delivery Date (RDD).  (Revised Amendment 0004) 
 
28. In the SOW on Page 56, under Point H (GOVERNMENT FURNISHED MATERIAL – OPERATIONAL 
RATIONS), it states that the Prime Vendors costs for GFM storage, distribution, re-work, and re-labeling 
shall be included in the Distribution Price for GFM. Is the Prime Vendor responsible for custom clearance 
costs for GFM products?  
 DLA Troop Support Response: After initial receipt of the GFM, the Prime Vendor will be responsible 
for all custom clearance costs.  This includes delivery of the GFM to any customer location or the transfer 
of the GFM to another one of its warehouse locations.  
 
29. In the SOW pg. 46 it states when requested, the Prime Vendor is required to furnish beverage 
dispensing machines and beverage products, as specified herein. The cost and upkeep of the machines 
consisting of, but not limited to, labor, transportation, and supplies required to repair and maintain the 
equipment, shall be the sole responsibility of the Prime Vendor. Why is this a Prime Vendor responsibility 
to buy, maintain those machines? Are the machines not already covered by Food Service/ Life Support 
contractors managing DFACs on bases and ships or contractors who are maintaining FSVC equipment? 
 DLA Troop Support Response: This acquisition is for food and food service operating supplies (non-
food), therefore these items cannot be included on the catalog.  In accordance with section IV, subsection 
N, “Dispensing Supplies and Services”, the solicitation does not necessarily require the prime vendor to 
purchase the machines, but instead furnish and maintain them.  DLA understands that it is industry practice 
for manufacturers to include beverage dispensers and servicing of the dispensers as part of the price of the 
product.  While dispensing supplies and services are covered under the contract, not all customers may 
require dispensers along with beverage items.   
 
30. With reference to SOW pg. 46 beverage dispensing machines, DLA has listed 263 locations potentially 
covering more than over 90 countries. The potential investment would be a minimum of 1.3 million dollars. 
Is there a requirement to cost in the maintenance and service or these machines? And if so how is possible 
for Navy afloat customers?  
 DLA Troop Support Response:  DLA understands that it is industry practice for manufacturers to 
include the dispenser and servicing of the dispensers as part of the product price.  In any event, under the 
contract, the cost and upkeep of the machines consisting of, but not limited to, labor, transportation, and 
supplies required to repair and maintain the equipment, will be the responsibility of the Prime Vendor. 
 
31. Syria is listed under zone 2 & zone 4 in the SOW – Syria is also DLA contract SPE300-15-R-0042 for 
Kuwait, Iraq and Jordan. Can you clarify if Syria will be supported by the successful bidder of zone 2 & 4 
of this solicitation or for the successful bidder of SPE300-15-R-0042 for Kuwait, Iraq and Jordan?  


DLA Troop Support Response: Syria will be within the scope of this contract. 
 
32. Syria is a country designated by the US government to be under sanctions and specifically by the US 
treasury under the OFAC rules (Office Foreign Asset control). To operate in Syria requires a license from 
the OFAC office otherwise banks will not process payments and may indeed shut the bank account. Is there 
a license or waiver that the DLA has for its contractors to operate in Syria (as an example the United 
Nations has a license to operate in Sudan which is another sanctioned country)?  


DLA Troop Support Response:  DLA is not providing a waiver or license. 
 
33. Page 45 of the SOW states: “If, for example, an item has a pre-surge demand of 100 cases per week, 
the contractor is expected to be able to support 300 cases per week for 30 days during the surge period.” 
Page 87 of the SOW (FILL RATE EXCEPTION CODES) then states “V01 Monthly item demand exceeds 
average demand by >300%”. How should the V01 reason be requested and calculated? Does this mean 
that, if the PV can document that the current demand exceeds historical demand >300% (e.g. historical 
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demand=100 cases per week, current demand >300 cs per week), the PV will be granted a fill rate 
exception for this product?  
 DLA Troop Support Response:  All exceptions should be requested along with the weekly fill rate 
report using the template spreadsheet included on page 88 of the solicitation.  The contracting officer or 
his/her delegation will make the final determination regarding all requested exceptions.  For the V01 
Exception, Demand is defined as the sum of stock ordered via 850 EDI transactions into the Vendor’s 
system excluding documented ordering error exceptions approved by the Contracting Officer/COR (V04 & 
V05).  Therefore, if the demand for a specific item over the last 30 days exceeds 300% of the Prime Vendors 
AMD for that item from all customers, this exception may apply.  (Revised Amendment 0006). 
 
34. Serbia – Is listed under zone 4 NAVEUR / NAVAF. Why is Serbia listed under zone 4?  
 DLA Troop Support Response:  See the Note on page 79.  “**Note: The countries listed in Zone 4 
represent the current Ports of Call for NAVEUR/NAVAF. During the life of the contract, Ports of Call maybe 
added to Zone 4 to service any country list in Zones 1, 2 and 3, at no additional cost to the Government.” 
 
35. In the SOW it states for purposes of this solicitation, currently there are no U.S. activities deemed as 
“contingency operation” as defined in Federal Acquisition Regulation (“FAR”) 2.101.”  Shouldn’t Syria, and 
many of the African countries listed in zone 3 be considered “contingency operation”.  
 DLA Troop Support Response: Syria is currently considered a contingency operation.  However, 
none of the African countries listed in Zone 3 are currently considered contingency operations.  Offerors, 
and the eventual awardee, are responsible for remaining apprised of the contingency operation status of 
the areas of performance.   
 
36. Is it mandatory to use US flag Air carriers from CONUS into OCONUS or we are able /allowed to use 
any other international airlines / charter companies operating out of USA?  
 DLA Troop Support Response:  Based on the current solicitation it is not mandatory to use US Flag 
Air Carriers.  The PV will be responsible for ensuring compliance and continued compliance with all laws 
and regulations applicable to performance under the contract, including transportation related laws and 
regulations. 
 
37. Is there any other particular approvals needed by DLA /TRANSCOM for non US air carriers?  
 DLA Troop Support Response:  Section V. Transportation of the Statement of Work generally 
discusses Transportation requirements.   
 
38. Are they any countries in this AOR that we should NOT be flying or driving over on our way to final 
delivery location, can we have a list of those countries?  
 DLA Troop Support Response:  The Prime Vendor will be responsible for the knowledge of these 
types of restrictions and ascertaining its own strategy for satisfying contract requirements. 
 
39. For zone 2 why are Armenia, Azerbaijan, Cyprus, Georgia, Lebanon, NOT included as remote locations?  
 DLA Troop Support Response:  These countries will be added to the list. (Revised Amendment 
0004) 
 
40. Is there a current customer in Iceland? What are the current volumes? What is the delivery schedule?  


DLA Troop Support Response: There is not a current customer in Iceland. 
 
41. In the SOW pg. 80 it states any demurrage costs incurred as a result of ship schedule changes/, are 
the responsibility of the PV and will not be reimbursed by DLA Troop Support.  
 DLA Troop Support Response:  Correct. 
 
42. If the PV sends 18 trucks for a scheduled RDD in Cyprus and the location and RDD is changed on or 
near the original RDD by 10 days to Augusta Bay the additional transportation and demerge costs are 
substantial. Can the DLA advise if there are any restrictions concerning unilateral changes by the customer.  
 DLA Troop Support Response:  To the extent the change is made in accordance with the terms of 
the solicitation, there are no restrictions.  Customers may change location based on mission requirements.    
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43. Can the DLA please confirm the inventory split between zone 2 and 4?  


DLA Troop Support Response: The market basket for Zone 2 and Zone 4 give estimated demand 
per zone and are not combined. 
 
44. Zone 1: Page 81 states Finland as remote location, yet is not listed in countries serviced from Zone 1 
(page 78 and 79). Can DLA explain? 


DLA Troop Support Response: Per amendment 0002 “The following is added to XIII – Customers: 
Zone 1 Northern Europe Finland”  
 
45. Page 81: Under Zone3 why are the following countries not listed as remote: Sao Tome and Principe, 
Sierra Leone and Togo?  
 DLA Troop Support Response:  These countries were added to the list in Amendment 0004. 
 
46. On the listed in countries for Zone 3 (page 78 and 79) the following is listed specifically: “Democratic 
Rep of the Congo”. However, can DLA please confirm that locations in Eastern DRC (e.g. Goma) are to be 
serviced from this Zone (3) as one would expect these location to be serviced from Eastern Africa?  
 DLA Troop Support Response: The entire Democratic Republic of Congo (DRC), including the 
Eastern DRC and Goma is included in Zone 3. 
 
47. Why are the following countries NOT considered Remote? Should orders be delivered here within 2 
calendar days: 
Zone 1 Northern Europe  
Belarus  
Corsica  
Estonia  
Iceland  
Latvia  
Lithuania  
Ukraine  


 
 DLA Troop Support Response:  These countries were added to the list in Amendment 0004. 
 
48. Why are the following countries NOT considered Remote? Should orders be delivered here within 2 
calendar days:  


Zone 2 Southern Europe  
Armenia  
Azerbaijan  
Cyprus  
Georgia  
Israel  
Lebanon  
Madeira  
Malta  
Moldova  
Portugal  
Syria  


 
DLA Troop Support Response:  These countries were added to the list in Amendment 0004. 


 
49. Why are the following countries NOT considered Remote? Should orders be delivered here within 7-14 
calendar days:  
Zone 3 Western Africa  
Sao Tome and Principe  
Sierra Leone  
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DLA Troop Support Response:  These countries were added to the list in Amendment 0004. 
 
50. Must the PV use dedicated trucks for customer deliveries?  If not are commercial goods allowed on 
base?  


DLA Troop Support Response: Yes, a PV must use a dedicated truck for customer deliveries. 
 
51. On page 81, the remote locations for Zone 3 are being specified. Is the fact that a location is considered 
a remote location also factor for the KO to consider to apply the airlift fees (categories 23 through 31)?  


DLA Troop Support Response:  These countries may require airlift support, however the fact that a 
country is listed as a remote location does not dictate that an airlift will be required. 
 
52. In the excel file for Zone 3, “CURRENT CATALOGED ITEMS”-tab, it shows over 12,000 cases of Rations 
(UGR+MRE) being ordered per year; these are not listed under the 13 mentioned customers. Can DLA 
advise which customer orders these? If customer cannot be specified, can DLA advise to which country 
these 12,000+ cases go?  


DLA Troop Support Response:  DLA cannot advise which customers will request rations. The 
provided information is an estimate.  Offerors are reminded that this is a solicitation for an Indefinite 
Delivery Indefinite Quantity contract, and all of the information provided concerning demand is estimated 
information with no guarantees as to accuracy or future purchases.   
 
53. Currently there are no contingency areas listed, but in case the security situation changes and warrants 
it, will the USG/DLA provide Convoy Security (Private Convoy Security or Military Convoy Security)?  In 
addition, Syria, in this solicitation under Zone 2 and 4, has also been listed as an add-on on the Kuwait-
Iraq-Jordan contract (where there is a requirement to price Private Convoy Security separately). Based on 
the current solicitation language, it seems that the PV should currently not to include costs for Private 
Convoy Security in the distribution prices.  


DLA Troop Support Response:  The USG may provide Convoy Security depending on the 
circumstances, however, this responsibility may also fall on the Prime Vendor if the USG cannot provide it.  
Therefore, an additional Distribution Category will be added in a future Amendment to account for this 
possibility. 
 
54. Non-Tactical Vehicles (NTVs) as mentioned in the SOW pg. 62 please specify what are the Non-Tactical 
Vehicles in the context of an SPV contract?  


DLA Troop Support Response:  Paragraph VII. B. 12. V on page 62 will be deleted.  (Revised 
Amendment 0006).  
 
55. How is possible that on the market basket we have different descriptions for the same LSN? A few 
examples; 892001E603473  
Zone 1 - Northern Europe = CEREAL, VARIETY, HEALTHY, 60/1.25 -2.7 OZ CO, 1/8.25 LB CS  
Zone 3 - Western Africa = CEREAL, VARIETY, WELLNESS, 1.25 - 1.27 OZ, 60 CUPS/CS, E76  
892001E598920  
Zone 1 - Northern Europe & Zone 2 - Southern Europe = CEREAL, VARIETY, KELLOGG'S, 1.3-2.8 OZ CUPS, 
60 CT, 1/7.5 LB CS 
Zone 3 - Western Africa = CEREAL, VARIETY PACK, SWT, 60 / 1.3 - 2.1 OZ CUPS PER CASE, E80  


DLA Troop Support Response:  Since the Market Basket represents demand from multiple Prime 
Vendors, multiple descriptions can be utilized. 
 
56. Are the airlift related category fees to be considered for inter-zone only (e.g. from PV warehouse 
location to a delivery location within the specific zone only)?  
 DLA Troop Support Response: Yes, it is for inter-zone only. 
 
57. The excel sheets with the market baskets, on “DISTRO CAT” tab mention the following distribution 
categories:  
24. Wet Ice (Potable) LB  
25. Dry Ice LB  
Are categories 24 & 25 only to be used in conjunction with category 23? 







SPE300-17-R-0016 Subsistence Prime Vendor 
Northern Europe, Southern Europe/North Africa & Western Africa 


Amendment 0006 


9 


DLA Troop Support Response: No, each category is separate, however, based on historical data, 
category 23 will be utilized the most. 
  
58. If a NSN on the market basket is linked to a MPA item do we have to quote the MPA item or can we 
quote the lowest priced/exact match item?  


DLA Troop Support Response: An offeror does not have to quote the MPA as long as the quote is 
the lowest priced/exact match item. 


 
59. If a NSN on the market basket is linked to a NAPA item (Stock number links to a specific brand), do we 
have to quote the NAPA item or can we quote the lowest priced/exact match item?  


DLA Troop Support Response: You can quote the lowest priced/exact match item. 
 
60. For all of the chicken items listed on the market basket, are we required to request quotes from Tyson 
Foods only, the national contract holder?  


DLA Troop Support Response: You are required to request quotes from Tyson Foods for items on 
the National Chicken contract.  Not all chicken items are part of the National Chicken contract. 
 
61. Can Food Service Operating Supplies (FSOS) items come from OCONUS sources? 
 DLA Troop Support Response: Yes, FSOS items can come from OCONUS sources. It is important to 
note that as stated in section 4, subsection M, “Food Service Operating Supplies”, these items may still be 
subject to domestic source restrictions, including the Berry Amendment Restrictions (DFARS 225.7002-1 
and 10 U.S.C. Section 2533a). 
 
62. Please can you confirm that the LMR items will be included in the contract? 


DLA Troop Support Response: DLA cannot confirm that LMR items will be included in the contract.  
That is why DLA is requesting Distribution Prices for with and without LMR items.  In the 4th paragraph of 
the introduction the Solicitation states “(t)he Government also reserves the right to make the award(s) 
with or without Local Market Ready (LMR) items.” 
 
63. Page 2 – “Initial technical/business proposals or revisions to technical/business proposals may be 
submitted by e-mail, however, copies of quotes/invoices will not be accepted via facsimile or e-mail in 
response to this solicitation. As directed by…”.  This seems to be in contradiction with other paragraphs. 
Please clarify.  


DLA Troop Support Response:  Amendment 0004 changes the addendum of FAR 52.212-1 and 
states that neither Facsimile or email offers will be allowed for initial proposals or revisions to initial 
proposals. 


 
64. Refers to Page 3 of Solicitation – “…. SEE ATTACHMENT 2”.  What about Attachments 1,3 & 4?  


DLA Troop Support Response:  Revised in Amendment 0004. 
 
65. Refers to Page 5 “Clearly identified MPA items. “Please clarify sentence and how should we do it.  
 DLA Troop Support Response:  The Quote sheet has been revised.  See Amendment 0003. 
 
66. Refers to Page 32: “It is estimated that the incumbent Prime Vendors minimum two (2) months of 
stock of the total pipeline, will be distributed to the awardees as follows:  
Zone 1 – Northern Europe 81% of TWI’s inventory  
Zone 2 – Southern Europe/North Africa 72% of EFS’ inventory  
Zone 4 - NAVEUR/NAVAF Ships 19% of TWI and 28 % of EFS’ inventory  
Please clarify what is meant by the above.  
 DLA Troop Support Response:  The zone configuration on the current Europe Prime Vendor region 
is different from the zone configuration in this solicitation.  As a result, the current Prime Vendor inventories 
are broken out based on the percentages.      
 
67. Refers to page 108 – DLA Manufacturer Quote template.  
The quote mentions “Market Basket QTY and Unit of Measure” Please clarify what QTY (quantity) is referring 
to? What should we submit?  Is “Market QTY” referring to field “TOTAL ANNUAL QTY BASED ON HISTORICAL 
UOM” of Attachments 1, 2, 3 & 4?  Please provide example to clarify.  
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DLA Troop Support Response:  Yes, it is referring to “TOTAL ANNUAL QTY BASED ON HISTORICAL 
UOM” of Attachments 1, 2, 3 & 4. 
 
68. Refers to page 108 – DLA Manufacturer Quote template.  The quote mentions “Market Basket QTY …” 
“Market Basket QTY” might be different for the same items dependent on which Zone we are referring to 
(1,2,3 or 4). Should offerors provide 4 different quotes (to represent the 4 different zones) of the same 
item?  Can offerors submit one quote per item that is valid for the 4 zones ? in this case, what “Market 
Basket QTY” should we write down ?  


DLA Troop Support Response:  Each zone is being reviewed individually so offerors need to provide 
1 quote per zone.  If an item is in all 4 zones, then 4 quotes need to be submitted each with the information 
in that particular zone. 
 
69. Refers to page 108 – DLA Manufacturer Quote template.  Should the quotes be SIGNED by the 
manufacturers? If so, where should they sign them? At the bottom of the quote?  


DLA Troop Support Response:  The quote sheet has been amended and there is a line for 
manufacturer signature at the bottom (see Element 4, “Manufacturer Quotes or Invoices”, subsection 2). 
 
70. Refers to page 108 – DLA Manufacturer Quote template.  Should the “Line item” number be indicated 
on the quote? if so, where? Top right hand corner of the quote?  


DLA Troop Support Response:  The quote sheet has been amended to include “Item Number from 
Market Basket.” 
 
71. Refers to page 108 – DLA Manufacturer Quote template.  Where can we indicate whether the item has 
MPA pricing? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  The quote sheet has been amended to include “Manufacturers 
Pricing Agreement.” 


 
72. On page 108, on the DLA Manufacturer Quote template, section A mentions “FOB Origin Product Price, 
without exception, as appears on quote:”. What does DLA mean by “..… as appears on quote “?  To which 
quote is it referring to? We believe this could be deleted. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  The quote sheet has been amended and “…without exception, as 
appears on quote:” has been removed. 
 
73. On page 108, on the DLA Manufacturer Quote template, section B “DLAD 52.216-9065 Product Price 
with Exception (Circle one A, B, C, D or E) as appears on quote:”. What does DLA mean by “… as appears 
on quote “?  To which quote is it referring to? We believe this could be deleted. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  The quote sheet has been amended and “DLAD 52.216-9065 Product 
Price with Exception (Circle one A, B, C, D or E) as appears on quote:” has been removed.   
 
74. On page 108, on the DLA Manufacturer Quote template, section F “Time period Price Quote is effective: 
“  Is there a minimum validity for the quote to be considered by DLA?  It is unlikely that manufacturers will 
provide competitive quotes which are valid 240 days.  As result, can Offerors confirm that THEY (i.e. the 
offeror) are prepared to keep the quoted price valid for 240 days.  If this is possible, where should the 
Offeror indicate this? On the quote? on a separate document?  


DLA Troop Support Response:  There is no minimum validity that a manufacturer/supplier must 
provide.  Therefore, the offeror should be prepared to keep the quoted price valid for 240 days. By signing 
the solicitation, an offeror is agreeing the period of acceptance of 240 days.  See “Addendum to FAR 52.212-
1 – Instructions to Offerors – Commercial Items” paragraph 2 on page 96. 


 
75. Refers to Page 108 - OFFICIAL DLA TROOP SUPPORT OCONUS SUBSISTENCE QUOTE SHEET  There are 
numerous items in the 4 market baskets that are items which will need to be sourced locally.  Based on 
information given on page 112, DLA customers could be located in 86 different countries.  We understand 
that Public Health Command (USAPHC) Circular 40-1, Worldwide Directory of Sanitarily Approved Food 
Establishments for Armed Forces Procurement, is a small sample of the possible manufacturers across the 
world, and that it mostly list facilities which are already being used by current OCONUS Prime Vendors.  
Can we submit quotes from manufacturers which are not presently on the list of approved sources for the 
purpose of this solicitation? If awarded, we would have the facility audited by the competent authority. 
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Background: The authority that adds facilities on the list do not want (do not have the time or manpower) 
to add facilities upon the request of SPV offerors. They are only willing to do so, if the request comes from 
the incumbent Prime Vendor, or to the new contract holder when the contract has been awarded. Please 
advise what offerors should do if current OCONUS manufacturers, listed on the Worldwide Directory of 
Sanitarily Approved Food Establishments for Armed Forces Procurement, are unwilling to provide quotes 
by fear of losing their contract with the incumbent PV. The later putting pressure on the manufacturers not 
to provide quotes to other companies. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  As stated in Section IV, subsection D, “Local Market Ready Items”, 
it is a requirement of the solicitation and resultant contract(s) to purchase some LMR items from local 
approved sources.  Therefore, for items that are required to be sourced from approved sources, the quotes 
must be from manufacturers/suppliers that are approved sources. 


 
76. Page 30 – “ (inclusive of up to 105-day ramp-up period).”  In every single OCONUS Prime Vendor 
solicitation issued by DLA, the ramp-up period has been 6 months. Please confirm ramp-up period for this 
solicitation is 105 days (i.e. 3.5 months). 


DLA Troop Support Response: The implementation phase of this solicitation will be revised to 180 
days. 


77. Refers to Page 105 “1. In Column G, Rows 5 through 40, offerors will insert their distribution price for 
the first Tiered Pricing Period (a 24-month performance period, to include a 6-month ramp up) per the unit 
of measure (UOM) in column D.”  In this sentence ramp-up period is defined as 6 months. Please confirmed 
ramp-up period for this contract. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Is now correct based on the Amendment to 180 day implementation 
phase. 


78. page 33 “…. sufficient anticipated demand …”  What is DLA’s definition of “sufficient anticipated 
demand”? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Sufficient anticipated demand refers to anticipated future customer 
demand in each Zone for the items.DLA Troop Support requires the incumbent Prime Vendor to transfer 
GFM to a new Prime vendor, DLA Troop Support will pay for this transportation in accordance with the 
contractual terms and conditions of that specific contract. 


82. Page 33 “For Zone 3, an implementation phase will not utilize ramp-down with an incumbent.”  Why 
will there be no ramp-down for zone 3?  From which PV are the goods defined in Attachment 3 being 
sourced? 


DLA Troop Support Response: As stated in Section III, “Contract Implementation Phase”,  there is 
little or no dedicated inventory for the customers in Zone 3, therefore there is no inventory or performance 
to ramp down.  The demand for the items in Attachment 3 are based on the customers’ usage. 


83. Page 33 “The new Prime Vendor will only be entitled to 50% of its distribution price for product 
purchased from the incumbent Prime Vendor ….” Please provide the rationale for this important discount.  
Apart from inland freight (which is a tiny portion of the overall logistics costs the Prime Vendor needs to 
cover), there are no other costs that the new PV will save by purchasing goods from the incumbent. 
Moreover, it is more than likely that the incumbent will be charging its own fee for the goods, which the 
new PV is not allowed to recharge to its customers, so the new PV will potentially make a loss on every 
single case it purchases from the incumbent.  Please note that OCONUS transportation & warehousing costs 
which are the PV’s biggest expenditures will still be a reality despite purchasing the goods from the 
incumbent… Can this discount be revised to a lower percentage? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  The new Prime Vendor will only perform a portion of work that is 
covered by the Distribution Price, therefore, new Prime Vendor will only be paid 50% of its Distribution Price 
for product purchased from the incumbent Prime Vendor.  The Government does not intend to revise this 
amount. 


84. Page 35 B. DISTRIBUTION CATEGORIES  See attachment 2, tab “Distribution Category Worksheet” and 
….”  There is no tab called "Distribution Category Worksheet". There are tabs named in a similar manner. 
Please clarify. 
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DLA Troop Support Response:  The name of the tab in Attachment 2 is abbreviated - DISTRO CAT 
WRKSHT. 


85. Page 35 B. DISTRIBUTION CATEGORIES  “The Distribution Category Worksheet for Zones 1 and 2 
includes separate tabs labeled “With LMR” and “Without LMR”.”  There is no tabs called " With LMR " or 
“Without LMR”. There are tabs named in a similar fashion. Please clarify. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  The name of the tab in Attachment 1 and 2 is abbreviated - DISTRO 
CAT WRKSHT (LMR) and (Without LMR) respectively. 


86. Page 35 B. DISTRIBUTION CATEGORIES  “The Distribution Category Worksheet for Zones 4 includes 
separate tabs labeled “With Line Item Fill Rate With LMR”; “With Line Item Fill Rate Without LMR” and 
“Without Line Item Fill Rate With LMR”; “Without Line Item Fill Rate With LMR”.”  Please clarify the name 
of the above mentioned tabs, as they do not exist. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  The name of the tab in Attachment 4 is abbreviated - DISTRO CAT 
WRKSHT (LMR) and (WO LMR) and DISTRO CAT WRKSHT LIFR (LMR) and (WO LMR) respectively. 


87. Page 35 B. DISTRIBUTION CATEGORIES.  The following 2 Distribution categories seem to be missing; 
 CONUS CHILLED LB 
 CONUS CHILLED LB (For Product Price Exceptions B, C, D, or E) 


Please confirm. 
DLA Troop Support Response:  Items currently being purchased for the customers under this 


solicitation are covered by CONUS Chilled CS and CONUS Chilled CS (For Product Price Exceptions B, C, D 
or E). 


88. Page 35 B. DISTRIBUTION CATEGORIES  DISTRIBUTION CATEGORY 9 (&N9) : OCONUS CHILLED OR 
FZN LB.  Why combine CHILLED and FROZEN for the “PER LB” fee when “per CS” fees are identified in 2 
different categories. This does not make sense.  Offerrors could probably give a lower fee for the chilled 
products versus frozen.  We suggest splitting category into two. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  The majority of the OCONUS items are chilled so there should be 
few occasions where there is a Frozen OCONUS item, therefore they were combined. 


89. Page 35 - Distribution Category Description  Category 11 (&N11) “OCONUS Water CS (Potable - 
Bottled)”. Please define what DLA considers a standard Bottle size? 1LTR? 1.5 LTR? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  There is no standard bottle size; this category applies to all cases 
of water regardless of bottle size. 


90. Page 35 - Distribution Category Description Category 12 (&N12) “Disposal”  In most countries 
destruction is per weight (i.e. LB). Here we are requested to give a fee per CASE. Would you reconsider 
changing the UoM to LB?  What costs should be considered in our fee? Should the Product cost being 
destroyed be included in the fee? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  The UOM will remain “CS”.  All costs associated with Disposal are 
to be included. 


91. Page 35 - Distribution Category Description Please clarify Category 13 (&N13) “Restocking Price for 
Orders…” …. When would this be charged to DLA? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  As stated in Section XIV, subsection F, “Order Cancellation”, 
restocking charges will be paid at the discretion of the Contracting Officer  and only apply to cancellations 
up to 24/72 hours for delivery on orders over $10,000.00. 


92. Page 35 - Distribution Category 22 Category 22 (&N22) “DRY Pallet…”Can this be sourced in OCONUS? 
Or does it need to be sourced in CONUS?  Please provide exact specifications/dimensions?  Is 48” x 40” x 
36” sufficient? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Yes, they can be sourced in OCONUS.  Tri-walls are built to product 
palletization, it will vary, therefore there is no standard Tri-Wall size. 







SPE300-17-R-0016 Subsistence Prime Vendor 
Northern Europe, Southern Europe/North Africa & Western Africa 


Amendment 0006 


13 


93. refers to Page 36 - Distribution Category Description “Perishable” vs “Semi-perishable”  In reference 
to categories 27 and 30 (and N27 & N30)  Please provide DLA’s definition of “Perishable”. In reference to 
categories 28 & 31 (and N28 & N31).  Please provide DLA’s definition of “Semi-perishable”. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  For the purposes of that distribution category description, perishable 
is generally considered any item that is likely to spoil, decay or become unsafe to consume if not kept 
refrigerated or frozen at an appropriate temperature as specified by the product label.  . For the purposes 
of that distribution category description, Semi-Perishable is anything that does not have to be chilled or 
frozen but still has a limited shelf life. 


94. Page 36/37 - Distribution Category 27 andN27 Please clarify what costs should be included in this 
category? Do we need to include cost of air freight? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Yes, as stated in the Distribution Category Descriptions. 


If so, what air freight should be included? from CONUS to Europe? Within Europe? CONUS to AFRICA?  
Within Western AFRICA? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Each Zone has its own airlift Distribution Price Categories. That 
pricing is for airlifts performed within the Zone, excluding DTS Airlifts. 


Should this category consider CHILLED and FROZEN goods? or just FROZEN? or just chilled? 
DLA Troop Support Response:  Yes this category applies to both Frozen and Chilled items. 


Should Ground Transportation cost (truck) from CONUS / OCONUS SPV Warehouse to airport included? 
DLA Troop Support Response:  Yes 


Note: the amount of Wet/Dry ice is dependent on the amount of time the products will travel. If the goods 
need to travel from CONUS to OCONUS, will need more dry ice than OCONUS to OCONUS (dependent on 
journey time). How much wet/dry ice does DLA expect to be required? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  As stated in Section V, “Transportation”, it is the Prime Vendor’s 
responsibility to ensure there is a sufficient amount of wet ice or dry ice based on the expected journey 
timeframes. 


95. Refers to Page 36/37 - Distribution Category 28 and N28  Please clarify what costs should be included 
in this category ? Do we need to include cost of air freight? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Yes, as stated in the Distribution Category Descriptions. 


If so, what air freight should be included? from CONUS to Europe? Within Europe? CONUS to AFRICA?  
Within Western AFRICA? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Each Zone has its own airlift Distribution Price Categories. That 
pricing is for airlifts performed within the Zone, excluding DTS Airlifts. 


Should this category consider CHILLED and FROZEN goods? or just FROZEN? or just chilled ? 
DLA Troop Support Response:  Neither.  Semi-Perishable is anything that does not have to be 


chilled or frozen but still has a limited shelf life.   


Should Ground Transportation cost (truck) from CONUS / OCONUS SPV Warehouse to airport included? 
DLA Troop Support Response:  Yes 


Note: the amount of Wet/Dry ice is dependent on the amount of time the products will travel. If the goods 
need to travel from CONUS to OCONUS, will need more dry ice than OCONUS to OCONUS (dependent on 
journey time). How much wet/dry ice does DLA expect to be required? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Wet or Dry Ice should not be required for semi-perishable items. 


96. Refers to Page 36 - Distribution Category 29 and N29  Please clarify what costs should be included in 
this category?  Just handling costs (i.e. within PV's warehouse) or needs to include airfreight costs? 


DLA Troop Support Response:    Includes everything involved in cross leveling.  


97. Refers Page 36/37 - Distribution Category 30 & 31 and N30 & N31  Please clarify what costs should be 
included in the above mentioned 4 categories (30, 31, N30, N31) ? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  All costs associated with an airlift. 
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98. “….duration of the five (5) year period, should there be a change in pack size for an item, the contractor 
must notify the Contracting Officer.”  Where are the standard case size defined? Are the case sizes set in 
the tab "CURRENT CATALOGED ITEMS" of Attachments 1 thru 4, considered the benchmark for the entire 
contract length? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  There is no definition of standard case size.  The Current cataloged 
items and the items in the Market Basket are the current item sizes.  At any point during the duration of 
the contract, should the pack size change, the contractor must notify the Contracting Officer. 


99. Refers to Page 38 “4. In some instances, the Contracting Officer may direct the Prime Vendor to source 
a domestic equivalent item locally at no additional cost to the Government.  In this case, the associated 
OCONUS Distribution Price Category 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, or 11 shall be utilized.”  What about categories N6, N7, 
N8, N9, N10, or N11 ? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  This also applies to N6, N7, N8, N9, N10 and N11 (Revised 
Amendment 0004). 


100. Refers to Page 39 – “2. Offerors are required to submit pricing on the specific Brand Name items listed 
in the Market Basket, where applicable.”  There are no brand identified in the “Market Basket” tabs. Brands 
are however identified in the tabs.  “CURRENT CATALOGED ITEMS”. Should we use those?  In which case 
can we offeror other brands? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  The Market Basket items are a subset of the Current Cataloged 
items, so yes, the Brand Names are identified on the Current Cataloged Items tab.  If the brand specified 
cannot be purchased, alternate brands can be offered. 


101. Refers to Page 39 – “reviewed on a case by case basis and must be approved, in writing, by the 
Contracting Officer. DLA Troop Support currently has a National Contract in place for the acquisition of 
chicken items and DLA Troop Support intends to put other categories of protein items onto central 
contracts.”.  Are items governed by “National Contract (poultry, beef?...)” included in the Market Basket?  
If there any, can you please provide copy of the contract, point of contact details, and pricing for these 
items. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  National Contract information can be found on the DLA Troop 
Support website. 


102. Clearly there are items in the Market Basket which have MPA pricing? Please provide the pricing for 
these particular items. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  When obtaining pricing, the Manufacturer will be able to identify if 
the item is an MPA and what that price is. 


103.  To avoid unfair competition, and giving the incumbent unfair advantage, with respect to product 
pricing, would DLA please consider removing all items which have MPA pricing or governed by National 
Contracts.  The reasoning being that the incumbent Prime Vendor already has access to MPA and National 
Contract pricing, and these are supposed to be the most competitive available. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  MPA nor National Contracts will be removed from the Market Basket.  
When obtaining pricing, the Manufacturer and/or National Contract holder will be able to identify the pricing 
for those items and should quote that pricing. 


104. Refers to Page 44 “… the early payment is required within 10 days to obtain the discount;” Please 
clarify. Within 10 days of what? Receipt of invoice? Receipt of goods at warehouse? 10 days of delivery to 
customer? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Within 10 days of invoice from the Prime Vendor to the 
manufacturer/supplier. 


105. Refers to Page 45 “…Vendor shall maintain a minimum of sixty (60) days of stock (DOS) on a line 
item basis at each platform (aka warehouse facility) in order to fill all ordering activity requirements and 
meet the surge and sustainment requirements of this contract.”  Is DLA saying that according to DLA a 
minimum of 60 days is sufficient to fill all ordering activity requirements AND to meet the surge and 
sustainment requirement of this contract? 
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DLA Troop Support Response:  DLA is stating in Section IV, Subsection K, “Item Availability”, that 
the Prime Vendors shall maintain a minimum of 60 DOS at each platform at all times. 


106. Refers to Page 46 “…cases (Distribution Category 12) only….”  Category N12 seems to be missing. 
DLA Troop Support Response:  Will be revised to include N12 (Revised Amendment 0004). 


107. Refers to Page 48 “8. DLA Troop Support has been advised by USTRANSCOM that the “Point to Point” 
delivery time to Northern Europe, Southern Europe/North Africa or Western Europe from the Eastern and 
Western U.S. coasts averages sixty-five (65) days depending upon the point of embarkation.”  There seems 
to be a typo on “Western Europe”. Expect it should be “Western Africa”. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Revised to state Western Africa as part of Amendment 0004. 


108. Refers to Page 53 “The Prime Vendor shall sub-contract with the approved source(s), i.e., the 
subcontractor is located in the same country as the delivery point, to fulfill these direct vendor delivery 
requirements.”.  Please clarify.  What if the subcontractor is not located in the same country? Are we not 
allowed to do direct deliveries? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Section V, subsection J, “Direct Vendor Deliveries within Northern 
Europe, Southern Europe/North Africa and Western Africa”, addresses purchases made within the country, 
in which a 50% Distribution Price will apply.  Deliveries can be made from outside the country. 


109. Refers to Page 53 “Distribution Price Categories, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 21 are subject to this pricing and 
possibly Distribution Price Categories 18, 19 and 20 depending on the area.”  What about, N6, N7, N8, N9, 
N10, N11, N21, N18, N19, N20. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Revised to include the Navy categories as part of Amendment 0004. 


110. Refers to Page 53 – K OVERLAND…”….calendar year. All Prime Vendor costs, including but not limited 
to the tasks described above shall be included in the distribution price.”.  Included in which distribution 
price? Please clarify. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  The Distribution Price assigned to each product category will apply.  
No additional Distribution Price for APOD/SPOD deliveries will apply. 


111. Refers to Page 77 Palletization When delivering Palletized material to non-navy customers, is there 
height not exceed (i.e. height maximum)? 


DLA Troop Support Response: As stated in Section XII, “Palletization”, of the solicitation, good 
commercial practice should be used when palletizing shipments. 


112. Refers to page 78 – CUSTOMERS Syria is included in Zone 2 and in Zone 4.  We understand that Syria 
has been recently added to SPE300-15-R-0042 in Amendment 0011. Please confirm that Syria is included 
in Zone 2 and in Zone 4. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Syria is included in Zone 2 and Zone 4. 


113. Refers to Question Page 78 – CUSTOMERS Can you confirm that Zone 4 only includes Navy ships (i.e. 
not Navy bases). 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Zone 4 is Navy Ships customers only.  Land Based Navy customers 
are included in Zones 1, 2 and 3. 


114. Refers to Page 80 – “...therefore, Load Out orders must be submitted to the PV 36 days prior to the 
RDD. Depending on the location, delivery can be made anywhere from 3-12 days once the order has been 
finalized unless otherwise directed by the Contracting Officer.”  Please clarify. This sentence should be 
deleted? This is for non-load out ships. Otherwise the lead- time is exactly the same (i.e. 3-12 days). 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Order place leadtime and the amount of time to physically deliver 
product are two different things.  The PV must have 36 days advance notice for Load Out orders.  The PV 
will then have 3-12 days to make the delivery.  This applies to both Navy Afloat Ships and other types of 
Ships 


115. Refers to page 87 - FILL RATE EXCEPTION CODES:  Please clarify meaning of Code 09 « C02 Canister”. 
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DLA Troop Support Response:  If CO2 Canisters are required by the customer and are not available 
locally, then there is an exception (see Section XIV, subsection K, “Fill Rate/Substitutions/Exceptions). 


116. Refers to Page 90 What about the respective Navy missing Categories (e.g. N1-N11, etc,…. 
DLA Troop Support Response:  Revised to include Navy categories as part of Amendment 0004. 


117. Refers to Page 92 “Negative reports are required and the government reserves the right to add 
additional requirements for additional reports at no additional cost to the Government.”.  Please clarify or 
provide example of “negative reports”. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Negative reports are reports that contain no information or where 
the response is negative, i.e. No. 


118. Refers to Page 97 (b). General submission requirement information:  Since offerors need to submit 
offers for all 4 zones to be considered for award for any of the 4 zones, offerors will have to submit the 
following to DLA. 


1 written copy of the Solicitation & Amendments. 
5 written copies of the Technical Proposal for Zone 1. 
5 written copies of the Technical Proposal for Zone 2. 
5 written copies of the Technical Proposal for Zone 3. 
5 written copies of the Technical Proposal for Zone 4. 


2 written copies of the Business Proposal / Pricing for Zone 1. 
2 written copies of the Business Proposal / Pricing for Zone 2. 
2 written copies of the Business Proposal / Pricing for Zone 3. 
2 written copies of the Business Proposal / Pricing for Zone 4. 


Considering 1 binder per copy, offerors will be submitting a total of 29 binders.  Could you confirm the 
above logic and number of binders considering 1 binder per copy. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  It is the offeror’s responsibility to ensure compliance with solicitation 
submission instructions. 


119. Refers to Page 98: “On a separate word document, submit a complete list of your affiliates, 
subsidiaries, and partially or wholly-owned companies that …”.  Where should this word document be 
submitted? In the binder that includes the signed solicitation & amendments? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  As defined in the solicitation’s addendum to FAR 52.212-1, this 
document is to be submitted as part of Volume I. 


120. Refers to Page 99: “Discuss advantages and disadvantages of your selection of an East Coast versus 
a West Coast facility in terms of arrival times and costs to the Government when product is transported 
via the Defense Transportation System.”  Please provide detailed (including prices) USTRANSCOM contracts 
with each carrier in order to provide you with requested cost analysis between West Coast versus East 
Coast facilities. If this information if not provided, the request appears difficult to satisfy. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  A formal cost analysis is not requested.  Use of DTS is at the 
Government’s expense so the question addresses advantages and disadvantages of the Prime Vendors 
choice of Port of Debarkation. 


121. Refers to Page 100 “Provide a brief performance record of up to five (5) of your highest dollar value 
and” …  What if company does business in a foreign currency (e.g. Euros)?  What FX rate does DLA want 
us to use? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  It is the offeror’s responsibility to determine the most appropriate 
information to submit with its proposal.   


122. Refers to Page 102 “SECTION B – PAST PERFORMANCE”.  Please clarify the difference between "Past 
Performance" and "Experience" Factor II page 100? It appears we need to submit the exact same 
information. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  See Section B under Factor V for information regarding Past 
Performance. See Factor II under Addendum to FAR 52.212-1 for information regarding Experience.  
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123. Refers to Page 102/103 - Performance Questionnaire.  “The offeror shall distribute the below 
questionnaire to each contract holder identified in response to Factor II – Experience of Section A – 
Technical Factors.”  On the questionnaire, what should we put under “Contractor’s name”, if the 
questionnaire is being filled by a customer of a team member / sub-contractor and not the offeror directly?  
Considering “…teaming approach with another firm, no more than 2 contracts from the other firm may be 
included in the 5 (selected contracts).” 


DLA Troop Support Response:  The “Contractor’s Name” field should include the name of the 
Contractor that the questionnaire concerns. 


124. Refers to Page 104 “The solicitation attachment 1 Pricing Spreadsheet…”  What about Attachments 
2,3 &4? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Revised to include Attachments 2, 3 and 4 as part of Amendment 
0004). 


125. Refers to Page 104  There is no tab called “Distribution Category Worksheet (LMR)" Do you mean 
”DISTRO CAT WRKSHT (LMR)"? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  See questions 85 and 86. 


126. Refers to Page 104 “v. The CURRENT CATALOGED ITEMS tab lists the items that were cataloged for 
customer support as of May 2016.”. Can you confirm this is indeed the case for Zone 3 (Western Africa)? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Confirmed. 


127. Refers to Page 104 “….. Two separate copies (preferably in folder or booklet form) of the quotes must 
be submitted. “. Can we include this copies in the binders that will contain the Manufacturers quotes? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Quote sheets are the only requirement. 


128. Refers to Page 105 - Element 2 - Category/Distribution Prices using attachment 1 thru 4, tab 
“Distribution Category Worksheet”.  There are no tabs called “Distribution Category Worksheet”. Please 
clarify. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  See questions 85 and 86. 


129. Refers to Page 105 “….solicitation are listed on Attachment 2,…”What about Attachments 1, 3, & 4 ? 
DLA Troop Support Response:  Revised to include Attachments 1, 3 and 4 as part of Amendment 


0004. 


130. Refers to Page 105 - Distribution Category Worksheet – Prepopulated or Calculated Fields:  “E: Annual 
Quantity in UOM Listed in Column E – annual quantity per UOM (Column E) for all items in the Market 
Basket that are cataloged within a specific category”  We believe the above mentioned “Column E” and 
“(Column E)” should be replace by “Column D” and “(Column D)”. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  The definition of the field in the solicitation is correct. 


131. Refers to Page 105 - Distribution Category Worksheet – Prepopulated or Calculated Fields:  “G : Tier 
1 Distribution – total Distribution Price per Distribution Price category for the tier 1 period” Why is there 
the term “total” in the above description ? Should be deleted? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Total refers to the price for the category.  It should not be deleted. 


Same remark for the below descriptions; 


“Tier 2 Distribution – total Distribution Price per Distribution Price category for the tier 2 period” “Tier 3 
Distribution – total Distribution Price per Distribution Price category for the tier 3 period 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Total refers to the price for the category.  It should not be deleted. 


132. Refers to Page 106: “…indicating if a product rice exception…”Typo “rice” => “Price” 
DLA Troop Support Response:  Revised to “Price” as part of Amendment 0004. 


133. Refers to Page 107- Market Basket – Prepopulated or Calculated Fields:  “Column J : Northern Europe 
Quoted …”Northern Europe ??? Please clarify. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  The table in the solicitation applies to each Zone, in order not to 
duplicate the information four (4) times, Northern Europe was used as an example. 
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134. Refers to Page 107- Market Basket – Prepopulated or Calculated Fields:  “…..No Earlier Than November 
29, 2016)”.  Date is different than in Attachments 1-4, where it states 30th of November 2016. Please clarify 
date. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  November 29, 2016 is the correct date, revised as part of 
Amendment 0004. 


135. Refers to Page 106: “1. For each item on the market basket tab, the offeror shall confirm in a 
separate word document if the item quoted is or is not an exact match to the market basket item 
description.”  Where should this document be included? On the Manufacturer QUOTE? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  The separate document being referenced is the quote sheet.  There 
is a field to identify whether the item matches the market basket. 


Should it be one document/page per item? Or can we provide one document with the whole list of market 
basket items indicating if they are a match or not? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  A separate document is not necessary. 


136. Refers to Page 107:  What if a manufacturer does not return the quote to the offeror?  For example, 
because he is unwilling to provide quote to a competitor of the incumbent PV, or unwilling to provide quote 
because volume is too low...  Can we provide a quote from a distributor/consolidator? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  All Quotes must be in accordance with DLAD 52.216-9065 - 
Economic Price Adjustment (EPA) – Actual Material Costs for Subsistence Product Price Business Model.  In 
certain circumstances, distributor/consolidator quotes are acceptable. 


137. Refers to Page 107 “ An individual manufacturer’s quoted price may expire before your offer expires. 
Your offer should be valid 240 days from the date specified for receipt of offers (initial or revised, whichever 
is later). …”  If the validity of the Manufacturers Quotes are not valid for 240 days.  Can the offeror confirm 
to DLA that he will keep the prices for the 240 days? Where should such a statement be included in the 
offer? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  In accordance with the Addendum to FAR 52.212-1 Paragraph C, 
by submitting a proposal, the offeror is agreeing to hold the pricing for 240 days therefore, no additional 
statement is needed. 


Are the quotes considered acceptable for the purpose of this solicitation if the manufacturer indicates under 
section F “Time period Price Quote is effective” anything less than 240 days? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  In accordance with the Addendum to FAR 52.212-1 Paragraph C, 
by submitting a proposal, the offeror is agreeing to hold the pricing for 240 days, regardless of if the 
manufacturers holds their pricing. 


138. Refers to Page 112  Remark: All corresponding Navy Distribution categories are missing. 
DLA Troop Support Response:  Revised to include Navy categories as part of Amendment 0004. 


139. Refers to Page 112 : “….the selected Market Basket and for Distribution categories 12-17 and 26-31, 
which do not have associated item product prices. The items identified in the Market Basket cover all 
Distribution Price Categories except Distribution Categories 12-17 and 26-31. The items identified in the 
Market Basket cover all Distribution Price Categories except Distribution Categories 12-17 and 26-31 which 
are represented in the Distro Cat Worksheet tab of the Pricing Spreadsheets.”  There seems to be a sentence 
that has been duplicated. Please clarify. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Will be revised to delete (Revised Amendment 0004). 


140. Refers to Page 113 “will be evaluated and individual outliers will be identified and reviewed to 
determine if offered prices are reasonable. The information requested on attachment 2 will be evaluated 
using price analysis techniques. The attachment 2 Market Basket was established to be used in the 
evaluation process. Offerors are required to submit a quote for… »  What about Attachments 1,3 &4? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Revised to include Attachments 1, 3 and 4 as part of Amendment 
0004. 


141. Transportation.  Could you provide point of contact of the different USTRANSCOM carrier(s) (i.e. 
Hagag Lloyd, …) 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Carrier information can be found on the TRANSCOM Website as 
listed in the solicitation under Section V, subsection C, “Insurance/Liability and Claims”. 
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142. Refers to Page 108 - OFFICIAL DLA TROOP SUPPORT OCONUS SUBSISTENCE QUOTE SHEET - PRICING 
INFORMATION  Please confirm in which currency the quotes should be submitted. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  As stated in Section I, “Introduction”, prices are to be submitted in 
an offeror’s proposal in US Dollars. 


There are numerous items in the 4 market baskets that are items which will need to be sourced locally. 
As a result, offerors will have to get manufacturer quotes from foreign manufacturers. Based on 
information given on page 112, DLA customers could be located in 86 different countries, who do you 
necessarily do business in US Dollars. Please advise how offeror should submit quote to DLA if the 
manufacturer has provided quotes in a currency different than US Dollars (e.g. Euros). Should the offeror 
convert the pricing information in US Dollars? If so, which currency converter (e.g. www.oanda.com) 
should offerors use ? Where should the foreign exchange rate be indicated? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  OANDA Currency Site (http://www.oanda.com) as of the close of 
business on the effective date of the document. 


Directly on the quote? 
DLA Troop Support Response:  Yes. 


If OCONUS manufacturers are unwilling to quote in US dollars, what should the offerors do? 
DLA Troop Support Response:  The quote must be translated into US Dollars using OANDA Currency 


Site (http://www.oanda.com) as of the close of business on the effective date of the document. 


143. Refers to Attachment 5 Customers listed in Attachment 5 for Zone 3 appear to be temporary 
customers.  Meaning that they are linked to military exercises (e.g. Central Accord 14).  Does DLA expect 
the offeror to have platforms in Niger, Cameroon, Ghana, and Gabon? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  DLA Troop Support cannot advise where to establish platforms. 


Are the customers defined in Attachment 5, Zone 3, still ordering goods? 
DLA Troop Support Response:  Yes. 


144. As of the 9th of December 2016, the USAPHC Worldwide Directory Of Sanitarily Approved Food 
Establishments For Armed Forces Procurement, does not contain any facility that is approved for the 
storage & distribution of dry, chilled, & frozen products from approved sources, in any of the countries 
defined in Zone 3 (as per page 78). There is one in Bamako Mali but it has been suspended. 


However, in Attachment 5, Tab “Zone 3”, DLA have identified several customers (see below) and provided 
historical demand for these customers. 


W58MCV FB5461 W81EB 7 FT9282 W91QB 3 FB5462 FT9230 M27115 W91PLJ 


USARAF 
GAROUA, 
CAMERO 
ON 


P/C BASE 
ARIENNE 
ESCADRIL 
LE 


AGADEZ,  
NIGER 


JUNIPER   
MICRON 
409 


 


ARLIT, 
NIGER 


MANU 
DAYAK 
INTL 
AIRPO


MANU 
DAYAK 
INTL 
AIRPOR 


MARFORAF 
OPERATIO 
NS 


USARAF - 
NATURAL 
FIRE CSL 


   DET 2 
NIGER 


 T T OFFICER, 
GHANA 


 


GAROUA, 
CAMERO ON 


NIAMY, 
NIGER 


AGADE Z, 
NIGER 


NIAMY 


,     
NIGER 


ARLIT, 
NIGER 


AGADE 
Z,  
NIGER 


AGADE 
Z,  
NIGER 


 


GHANA 


LIBERVILL 
E, GABON 


If there are no approved facility in any of the countries of Zone 3, where are the CONUS products (i.e. 
not local market ready products) defined in Attachment 3 currently stored? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  These customers are currently supported using various current 
Prime Vendors. 
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Are the CONUS products being airlifted from goods Europe? If so, will this be the case in the future? Does 
DLA expect the offeror to have a platform in Western Africa? 


DLA Troop Support Response:   It is at the offerors discretion on how best to support the customers 
in Zone 3, DLA Troop Support cannot advise where to establish platforms. 


If so, does DLA have a preference on the country in which the platform should be operating from? 
DLA Troop Support Response:  It is at the offerors discretion on how best to support the customers 


in Zone 3, DLA Troop Support cannot advise where to establish platforms. 


Would the platform actually store CONUS goods on a yearly basis, or purely on a temporarily basis (i.e. 
during military exercises)? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Some areas will need support on a yearly basis in addition to military 
exercises. 


Should offerors consider that all CONUS products be airlifted into any of the countries defined in 
Zone 3? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  It is at the offeror’s discretion on how best to support the customers 
in Zone 3 (See Section V, “Transportation”, for a detailed description of transportation requirements). 


145. Refers to Attachment 3  Detailed demand PER CUSTOMER is not provided for the below 31 items. Can 
DLA provide this information? 
HISTORIC STOCK # DESCRIPTION 
891001E127423   MILK, LOW FAT, SHELF STABLE, UHT, 1.5 - 1.8% BUTTER FAT, 200 ML CO, 27 PER CS 
891001E127424   MILK, CHOC, LOW FAT, SHELF STABLE, UHT, 1.5% - 1.8% BUTTER FAT, 200 GM CO, 27/CS 
891001E127425   MILK, LOW FAT, SHELF STABLE, UHT, 1.5 - 1.8% BUTTERFAT, 1 LITER CO, 12 PER CS 
894001E390199   MOUSSE MIX, CHOC, 6/30 OZ CO 
891001E126240   MILK, CHOC, NONFAT, SHELF STABLE, UHT, 0.1% - 0.3% BUTTERFAT, 1 LITER CO, 12/BOX 
890501E130040   CKN BRST FLT, F/C, IF, W/RM, W/GRILL MARKS, 15% SOL MAX, 4 OZ EA, 2/5 LB BGS 
890501E198297   CKN, BONED, CN, PIECES, SOLID PG, 6/48 OZ CN 
890501E603595   HAM, WATER ADDED, CKD, DICED, FZN, 1/4 IN. THK, 2/5 LB BG, N#512A 
890501E604437   TURKEY, MST, BULK, FZN, 2/10 LB CHUB 
890501E392195   SAUSAGE CRUMBLES, P/C, FZN, PORK, 4/5 LB PG 
891001E605887   ICE CRM, COOKIES & CRM, FZN, 1/3 GL TUB CO 
8905014193218   CHICKEN,CUT-UP,8 PIECES,FZN,SILVER DOLLAR CUT WINGS,US GR A,4 BG/40 LB CS, Q70 
890501E193493   BEEF LOIN, TENDERLOIN, FULL, SIDE MUSCLE ON,DEFAT, FZN, US CH GR, 12/5.5-7.5 LB 
890501E092005   SALAMI, CKD, SL, FZN, PORK & BEEF, 0.5 OZ SL, 4/3 LB PG, N#804 
8905010661694   CHICKEN, FZN, PRECKED, DRUMSTIKS, THIGHS, BREAST HVS, BREADED OVEN, 4/10 LB, Q59 
890501E293351   DUCKLING, WHL, FZN, W/O HEAD, 4/4-7 LB EA (LOCALLY PROCURED IN FRANCE) 
890501E293352   RABBIT, WHL, FZN, 10/2-3 LB EA (LOCALLY PROCURED IN FRANCE) 
891501E213598   CARROTS, BABY, RTU, FRESH, WHL, PEELED, SOLD IN 1 LB INCREMENTS 
891501E213634   TOMATOES, FRESH, US NO. 1 GR, OR LOCAL EQUIV, BUY IN 1 LB INCREMENTS 
891501E213619   PEARS, FRESH, BULK, US NO. 1 GR, OR LOCAL EQUIV,BUY IN 1 LB INCREMENTS 
891501E213610   NECTARINES, FRESH, BULK, US#1, OR LOCAL EQUIV, BUY IN 1 LB INCREMENTS 
891501E213638   PEPPERS, RED, SWT, FRESH, BULK, BELL, US NO. 1, OR LOCAL EQUIVALENT, BUY IN 1 LB 
8970016239560   MEAL, IND, PORK-FREE, MEAL, INDIVIDUAL, PORK-FREE, ACR-M-034, BOX A 
8970001491094   MRE MEAL, READY TO EAT 
8970015256783   UGR A, D1, SEMI-PERISHABLE, 50 MEALS, REQ 8970015256813 (D1-P), REQ BRD & MILK 
8970014329946   UGR H&S L/D10 SS, 50 MEALS, REQ BREAD & MILK 
8970015256813   UGR A, D1, PERISHABLE, 50 MEALS, REQ 8970-01-525-6783 (D1-S), REQ BREAD & MILK 
8970013689154   HEALTH & COMFORT PK TYPE 1 M/F 
8970014877488   HEALTH & COMFORT PK TYPE 3 
8970013689155   HEALTH & COMFORT PK TYPE 2 F 
897001E010209   DRY ICE, BUY IN 1 LB INCREMENTS 


DLA Troop Support Response:  Customer detail is not available for those items, the quantity in 
Column E is an estimate. 
 
146. Refers to Attachment 3. tab “CURRENT CATALOGED ITEMS” show to have no demand whatsoever. 


DODAAC: W91QB3 W91PLJ M27115 W90Z7V 


 


CUSTOMER NAME: 


 


ARLIT, NIGER 


USARAF - NATURAL FIRE 
CSL 


MARFORAF 
OPERATIONS OFFICER, 
GHANA 


 


ATLAS ACCORD 


DELIVERY LOCATION: ARLIT, NIGER LIBERVILLE, GABON  


GHANA 


 


MALI/GHANA 


Are these customers still active? 
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DLA Troop Support Response:  Yes. 


If they are could you provide expected demand. 
DLA Troop Support Response:  Customer detail is not available for those items, the quantity in 


Column E is an estimate. 


147. On the below web site, DLA have published all contract and related Modifications to SPV contracts. 
http://www.dla.mil/TroopSupport/Subsistence/Foodservices/Regions/OCONUS/PVEurope.aspx.  Could DLA 
publish all Modifications to contracts SPM300-12-D-3481 and SPM300-12-D-3486 as the latest mods date 
from July 2016 and May 2016 respectively. 


DLA Troop Support Response:  The website is up to date for both contracts. 


It appears some companies are operating from places of performances not listed on their contract. Please 
advise whether all place of performance need to be included in PV contract. Or are there any exceptions? 


DLA Troop Support Response:  In accordance with FAR 52.212-6 all places of performance must be 
included in the contract(s) with no exception. This includes OCONUS and CONUS warehouse distribution 
facilities, CONUS Source Load Manufacturing Facilities and any Administrative Management Support Offices. 


2. III. Contract Implementation Phase, Paragraph 2 (iii). Is changed as follows: 


It is estimated that the incumbent Prime Vendors minimum two (2) months of stock of the total pipeline, 
will be distributed to the awardees as follows: 


Zone 1 – Northern Europe  81% of TWI’s inventory 
Zone 2 – Southern Europe/North Africa 50% of EFS’ inventory 
Zone 4 - NAVEUR/NAVAF Ships  19% of TWI and 50 % of EFS’ inventory 


3. IX. Quality Control, Quality Assurance and Inspections, Paragraph I.  Authorized Returns, Item x. is 
changed to read: 


x. Any other condition not specified above that is determined a valid reason by the customer and 
approved by the Contracting Officer or the Contracting Officer’s Representative prior to return. 


4. V. Transportation, H. Global Positioning System, Paragraph 1, Non-Tactical Vehicles is deleted. 


5. VIII. Security Measures / Force Protection, Theater Support & Contingency Operations, B.  Theater 
Support, Paragraph 12. v. is deleted in its entirety. 


6. XIV. Delivery, Title, Orders, and Order Fill Rates, K.  FILL RATE/SUBSTITUTIONS/EXCEPTIONS, the 
following is added to paragraph 10:  Requests for fill rate exceptions should be submitted on weekly basis 
along with the fill rate report(s). 


7. XIV. Delivery, Title, Orders, and Order Fill Rates, Fill Rate Exception Codes, the following is added: 


NOTE:  if the demand for a specific item over the last 30 days exceeds 300% of the Prime Vendors AMD 
for that item from all customers, exception V01 may apply. 


8. The implementation period/ramp up period referenced throughout the solicitation is changed to 180 
days. 
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